ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 4, 2008
3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska ( RCA)

Robert M “Bob” Pickett — Wasilla
- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

ROBERT PI CKETT, Appoi ntee

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

WASI LLA, ALASKA

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As appointee to the Regulatory Conm ssion
of Alaska (RCA), provided background and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee nmeeting to order at 3:06:08 PM Representatives Buch,
Gardner, Gatto, Neunman, and O son were present at the call to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2008



order. Representatives LeDoux and Ranras arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
Regul at ory Conmm ssion of Al aska (RCA

3:06: 24 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
to hold an informational hearing. He advised that no action
will be taken at this hearing.

3:06:34 PM

ROBERT PI CKETT, Appointee, stated that it has been a great honor
and very hunbling experience to have been appointed to the
Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA) by Governor Palin. He
stated that he is a 33 year resident of Alaska. He offered that

he owes nuch to this great state. He explained that his
original notivation to visit Alaska in 1975 was to pay off
col | ege student | oans. He said he did not plan on staying in
Al aska, but soon after arriving in Alaska that he fell in |ove
with the state. He has held blue collar, technical, and

professional jobs in rural and urban settings of the state. He
noted that for the past 21 years he has held a variety of
positions for the Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation (AHFC). He
appreciates the great challenges the state faces and the
opportunities that exist for Alaska. He said that the RCA wth
its broad authority to regulate nearly 200 utilities and 21
pi peline carriers, inpacts the economc health of Al aska. The
RCA has a challenging nmandate to keep rates as |ow as possible
yet to allow the regulated utilities and pipeline carriers the
opportunity to earn a fair rate of return. The RCA nust conduct
its business in a manner that has the confidence and respect of
al | stakehol ders: consuners and custoners, utility conpanies
and cooperati ves, | ocal gover nnent s, pi peline carriers,
| egi sl ative, executive, and judicial branches of governnent.
Bal ancing all of these varying interests nust be acconplished
within statutory tinelines and in an open and transparent nanner
while respecting the due process rights of all of the involved
parties, he noted. These conpeting and sonetinmes conflicting
interests can be difficult to resolve, he opined. He said he
believes that his work experience, know edge, and interpersona
skills give him the tenperament and ability to strike this
bal ance. He said he is excited to bring his skills and
experience to the RCA to assist it in its inmportant work, and
to contribute in a nmeani ngful way.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2008



3:10: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN i nquired as to whether M. Pickett has any
background in the oil and gas industry.

MR. PI CKETT expl ained that he does not have direct experience in
the oil and gas industry, outside of sonme initial work in the
state for Dow Engineers and geotechnical work on the Tesoro
refinery in 1979. However, he said that he has extensive
experience reviewing and analyzing balance sheets for |[|arge
entities and corporations, producing 30 year performance and
trend analyses, although not specifically wth a petroleum
i ndustry or pipeline elenent. Wile at AHFC, he said he
devel oped a new narket study process that is currently being
used. He highlighted that sonme of the projects he has been
involved in range from $25 mllion. Many of the principles used
at the RCA will be the sane, he opined. He adnmitted that he
does not have the specific background in the oil and gas
i ndustry, but he noted that he does have the advantage of
working with a fellow commi ssioner, Jan WIson, who has nore
than 25 years of experience in the pipeline industry. He noted
that he is currently assigned to several RCA dockets with M.

W son. He characterized his own approach as a thoughtful
approach in gathering evidence. He opined that as a voracious
reader, he has devel oped skills which will be helpful in terms

of number of dockets and evidence to review He noted that he
al so has experience with depreciation schedules and has a strong
mat hemat i cal backgr ound.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to whether he could el aborate
on the joint action agencies (JAAs).

MR, PICKETT answered that the JAAs are permtted but are not
mandated by statute. He related his understanding that specific

projects have not been assigned or contracted. He noted that
the Alaska Energy Authority, wth an appropriation from the
| egislature, is performng its Unified System Operator Study.

He surmsed that report is due to be finalized in My or June
2008.

3:13: 00 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN inquired as to M. Pickett’'s ideas of the

concept of el ectrical generation joined together in a
cooperative effort to forma grid.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2008



MR. PICKETT explained that he can’t speak to any specifics since
it would not be appropriate for himto do so, but in terns of
resource planning, the age of the infrastructure, and the
capital decisions that need to be nmade in the next few years,
that it makes sense to cooperate, coordinate, and elimnate
i nefficiencies whenever possible.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked for clarification of RCA's role in
regulatory review of wutilities since sone utilities generate
their owm electricity and others purchase the electricity.

MR. PICKETT answered that the RCA will respond to specific cases
and dockets. He reiterated that the JAA is permtted but not
mandat ed.

CHAIR OLSON rem nded nenmbers that M. Pickett cannot answer any
guestions on any open docket currently before the RCA

3:14: 50 PM

CHAIR OLSON noted that the RCA does not have designated seats
and expressed concern that the RCA is losing 25 years of
experience with Dave Harbour’s service at the RCA ending in
February 2008. He inquired as to whether M. Pickett has had an
opportunity to review the Al aska Gas | nducenent Act (AGA).

MR. PICKETT answered that he has not reviewed AG A in any great
detail .

3:15:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO related his wunderstanding of the recent
plans to shelve the Matanuska Electric Association’s plans to
build a coal-fired power plant south of Palner, which was
stym ed by a Matanuska- Susitna Borough ordinance. He inquired
as to whether M. Pickett has been involved with any utility
request that sinply wasn’'t feasible.

3:17: 20 PM

MR. PICKETT answered that due to his recent appointnment to the
RCA that he has not been involved with those issues. He
rem nded nmenbers that he cannot speak to the specifics of any
docket since it wuld prejudice the RCA s decision nmaking
process. However, he said that in a general sense that
significant decisions need to be nade by cooperatives and the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2008



state in terns of supply of energy, in light of aging equipnent,
infrastructure, and capital decisions.

MR. PICKETT, in response to Representative Gatto, explained that
the RCA becones involved in a project, such as the Energy Task
Force consideration of a 600-negawatt Susitna Hydroelectric
project, at the point that a docket is opened and the RCA is
asked to adj udi cate.

3:18:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to whether M. Pickett has any
experience with rate deregulated utilities.

MR. PICKETT pointed out that he has limted experience at the
RCA and has Ilimted know edge of the RCA s precedent. He
answered that he knows a little bit about deregulated utilities.
In terns of economic regulation, he noted that severa
exenptions exist such that cooperative nenberships can elect for
an exenption or for sonme smaller water wutilities due to size
limtations.

3:19:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS related that the gas utility in Fairbanks
is a rate deregulated utility that currently trucks LNG from
Poi nt MacKenzie to Fairbanks and re-gasifies it for distribution
to nore than 1,000 custoners. He expressed concern that the
Fai rbanks Natural Gas refuses to disclose its variable pricing,
but purchases LNG at $8.70 [per 1000 cubic feet (Mf)]and sells
it to custoners in his district for $22.91 [per Mf]. He
inquired as to whether a rate deregulated utility has an inplied
obligation to disclose the rate process to its ratepayers since
the utility enjoys the benefits of rate deregul ation.

3:22: 54 PM

MR. PICKETT, speaking as a private person, answered that he
thinks a fairness issue exists. He noted he is well aware of
the strains on Fairbanks residents for fuel costs, particularly
for senior citizens on fixed incones.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS again expressed concern that Fairbanks
Natural Gas wll not disclose the reason for the difference in
the rate of $8.70 per Mf and cost to custonmers at $22.91 per
Mcf, yet it enjoys the benefits of rate deregul ation.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2008



VR. PICKETT agreed that from his personal phi | osophi cal
standpoint that rate deregul ated conpanies should have a higher
degree of financial disclosure.

3:27:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if there are some instances in which
certain proprietary information should be nmade public.

MR. PICKETT answered that he cannot speak to the specifics of
dockets, but offered that in instances of acquisition that
requests are made to keep certain elenents confidential and that
the RCA has a process in place to nmke determnations, in
conjunction with its legal counsel, as to what information is
hel d confidenti al .

3:29:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH offered that when a person who has specific
expertise in an area is not available that the selection process
i ncl udes exam ning candidates for their potential to |earn. He
opined that it is unfair to hold deregulated conpanies to the
same requirenents as those conpani es subject to regul ation.

CHAIR OLSON offered that the former Alaska Public Utilities
Comm ssion had specific assigned seats for its conm ssioners.
However, the RCA does not have specific assigned seats or job
descriptions for the RCA conmm ssioners.

3:34:16 PM
MR. PICKETT, in response to Representative Ranras, answered that

if the state makes a political decision to invest in the bullet
line to bring North Slope natural gas to the Railbelt or sone

other variation, that the state will nmake a determ nation in its
appropriation process on its expected rate of return on that
i nvest ment . If the state does not require as high a rate of

return the tariffs could be set lower to encourage nore input
into the line from independent exploration, but if the state's
approach is to maximze its return, it would raise the tariffs,
he opi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS rel ated that one of the problens with the
in-state gas line is concern over economcally feasible. He
inquired as to the type of assistance or role that RCA would
play in assisting or expediting financial feasibility analysis

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2008



of in-state natural gas that nade sense and had sound econonic
under pi nni ngs.

3:36: 58 PM

MR,  PICKETT answered that the RCA would probably take an
educational role in terms of the rate setting and tariff
mechanism so the legislature would understand how RCA would
eval uate and determne the tariff cal cul ations.

3:37:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS opined that if Interior Al aska does not
obtain relief fromits utility rates, that the community wll be
drastically reduced.

3:39: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN i nquired as to what role RCA mght play in
val ue-added or industrial or commercial uses of natural gas to
liquids (G.Ts) or natural gas liquids (NGs) processing plants
to help lower the tariff costs.

3:41: 09 PM

MR. PICKETT, in response to Representative Neunman, answered that
assumng the cost feasibility allows the natural gas pipeline to
be built, that the RCA would be likely be involved in the rate
design issues for residential, industrial, and comercial users
as one of its mjor roles. He offered that the general
principle for rate design issues is that “the cost causer should
be the cost payer.”

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked for clarification on unfair trade
practices and tariffs. He posed a scenario in which natural gas

woul d be transported via a proposed in-state bullet line to an
i ndustrial user who reprocesses GIL for resale conpared to those
busi nesses whose natural gas source is Cook Inlet. He inquired

how the RCA would sort through those types of issues and bal ance
out busi nesses that may have an unfair advantage.

MR. PICKETT stated that he doesn’'t have an answer on in-state
gas issues. He stated that the first question will be whether
the RCA would have jurisdiction over the matter. If the RCA
does have jurisdiction, the question would be whether the RCA
woul d need to open a docket and investigate any inconsistencies.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2008



[ The RCA confirmation was hel d over. ]

3:43:48 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
3:43 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2008



